Public Document Pack

BlackpoolCouncil

29 August 2014

To: Councillors Brown, Elmes, Hutton, Mrs Jackson, Matthews, Owen, Smith, Stansfield and Williams

The above members are requested to attend the:

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Monday, 8 September 2014 at 5.00 pm in Council Chamber, Town Hall, Blackpool

AGENDA

1 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Members are asked to declare any interests in the items under consideration and in doing so state:

- (1) the type of interest concerned; and
- (2) the nature of the interest concerned

If any Member requires advice on declarations of interest, they are advised to contact the Head of Democratic Services in advance of the meeting.

2	MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 11TH AUGUST 2014	(Pages 1 - 18)
	To says the primutes of the last presting held on 11th August 2014	امم ما سند ما م

To agree the minutes of the last meeting held on 11th August 2014 as a true and correct record.

3 PLANNING/ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED AND DETERMINED (Pages 19 - 22)

The Committee will be requested to note the planning/enforcement appeals lodged and determined.

4 PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE REPORT (Pages 23 - 26)

The Committee will be asked to note the outcomes of the cases and approve the actions of the Service Manager – Public Protection.

5 PLANNING APPLICATION 12/0485 - FORMER TVR BUILDING, BRISTOL AVENUE (Pages 27 - 50)

The Committee will be requested to consider an application for planning permission, details of which are set out in the accompanying report.

Venue information:

First floor meeting room (lift available), accessible toilets (ground floor), no-smoking building.

Other information:

For queries regarding this agenda please contact Chris Kelly, Senior Democratic Services Adviser, Tel: (01253) 477164, e-mail chris.kelly@blackpool.gov.uk

Copies of agendas and minutes of Council and committee meetings are available on the Council's website at <u>www.blackpool.gov.uk</u>.

Present:

Councillor Owen (in the Chair)

Councillors

Brown Elmes Hutton Mrs Jackson Matthews Smith Stansfield

In Attendance:

Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory Support Manager Carl Carrington, Service Manager Built Heritage Karen Galloway, Principal Engineer Transportation Gary Johnston, Head of Development Management Mark Shaw, Principal Planning Officer Carmel White, Assistant Head of Legal Services

1 ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman and the other members of the Committee observed a moment's silence in respect of the recent passing of Councillor Tony Lee who had been a member of the Planning Committee for a number of years.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest on this occasion.

3 MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 14TH JULY 2014

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meetings held on the 14th July 2014 be agreed and signed by the Chairman as a true and correct record.

4 PLANNING/ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED AND DETERMINED

Resolved:

To note the Planning/Enforcement Appeals lodged and determined.

Background Papers: (1) Letters from Planning Inspectorate dated 30th May 2014 (2) Letter from Planning Inspectorate dated 2nd June 2016 (3) Letter from Planning Inspectorate dated 17th June 2014 (4) Letter from Planning Inspectorate dated 18th June 2014 (5) Letter from Planning Inspectorate dated 26th June 2014 (6) Letter from Planning Inspectorate dated 4th July 2014.

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING - MONDAY, 11 AUGUST 2014

5 LIST OF BUILDINGS OF LOCAL ARCHITECTURAL AND/OR HISTORIC INTEREST

The Committee considered a proposal to add buildings and some sections of cobble wall located in Waterloo ward to the local list.

Resolved:

To approve the proposed list and recommend its adoption to the relevant Cabinet Member.

6 PLANNING APPLICATIONS 13/0736 AND 13/0734 - BLACKPOOL UNITED HEBREW SYNAGOGUE, LEAMINGTON ROAD

The Committee considered planning applications 13/0736 and 13/0734 for external alterations including replacement windows and erection of part two-storey, part single-storey rear extension, second floor rear extension including enclosed roof garden following part-demolition of existing single-storey corridor extension and use of part-ground floor, part-first floor and second floor as altered as five self-contained permanent flats with associated basement cycle storage, rear bin store, landscaping, car parking and boundary treatment (Application for Listed Building Consent) at Blackpool United Hebrew Synagogue, Leamington Road, Blackpool.

Resolved:

That the applications be refused for the reasons set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

7 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0465 - LAYTON INSTITUTE, WESTCLIFFE DRIVE

The Committee considered Application 14/0465 for external alterations including two new doors to rear and provision of eight car parking spaces to rear and use of ground floor as altered as retail unit (Use Class A1) at Layton Institute, Westcliffe Drive.

Mr Tony Bowhill, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Mr Mark Shaw, Principal Planning Officer, outlined the key issues and highlighted an additional reason for refusal in the update note namely the lack of suitable access for wheelchair users to the upstairs bar area.

Resolved: That the application be refused for the reasons set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

8 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0467 - LAYTON INSTITUTE, WESTCLIFFE DRIVE

The Committee considered application 14/0467 for the erection of five two-storey dwellinghouses with associated car parking and access from Granby Avenue.

Mr Tony Bowhill, the agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application

Resolved:

That the application be refused for the reasons set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

9 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0375 - 119 NEWTON DRIVE

The Committee considered application 14/0375 for the erection of two, three-storey side extensions, a three-storey rear extension, two front dormers and use of premises as altered as eight permanent self contained flats and erection of two semi-detached bungalows with eight private garages and associated parking, bin store, access and landscaping at 119 Newton Drive.

Resolved: That the application be refused for the reasons set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

10 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0366 - 24 LODGE COURT

The Committee considered application 14/0366 for the erection of two storey side extension following demolition of attached garage.

Mr Johnston, Head of Development Management, mentioned the additional representations from the owners of 22 and 26 Lodge Court set out in the update note.

Resolved:

That the application be granted subject to the conditions set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

11 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0281 - 20 SANDERSON WAY

The Committee considered application 14/0281 for external alterations including new windows and entrance doors to front elevation and new fire doors to front and rear elevations and use of premises as altered as a gymnasium within Class D2 with associated car parking and bin storage at 20 Sanderson Way.

Mr Nick Griffiths from the applicant spoke in the support of the application.

Mr Johnston, Head of Development Management, said that the site was part of an industrial/business area off Vicarage Lane which had been allocated in the LocalPlan and that notwithstanding the proposed full-time/part-time jobs, the Council was short of employment land and had to rely on assistance from Fylde Borough Council with future provision.

Resolved: That the application be refused for the reason 3 et out in the appendix.

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING - MONDAY, 11 AUGUST 2014

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

12 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0460 - BAINES ENDOWED C OF E SCHOOL, PENROSE AVENUE

The Committee considered application 14/0460 for the erection of two single storey to front elevation to enlarge the existing staff-room and media suite and provide additional office space and a first aid room with associated landscaping works at Baines Endowed Church of England Primary School, Penrose Avenue.

Resolved:

That the application be granted subject to the conditions as set out in the application.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

13 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0275 - 187-197 WATERLOO ROAD

The Committee considered at external alterations including removal of shop frontage, reinstatement of bay windows to front elevation and use of premises as altered as a place of worship (Mosque) and community/education centre, with two ancillary self-contained flats at first floor level and associated parking to the rear, following demolition of existing rear outbuildings at 187-197 Waterloo Road.

Mr John Braithwaite, Mr Spencer Shackleton and Mr Jeremy Smith spoke in objection to the application.

Mrs Tasurraf Shah spoke in support of the application.

In response to the issues raised by the objectors, Mr Johnston, Head of Development Management, said that the applicant was not barred from making a new application which sought to address the previous reasons for refusal. However in this case the access to the parking area at the rear of the premises was not considered satisfactory nor was the proposed parking layout or provision. As a result of these deficiencies the application had been recommended for refusal.

Resolved: That the application be refused for the reasons set out in the appendix.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

MINUTES OF PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING - MONDAY, 11 AUGUST 2014

14 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0514 - 343-347 PROMENADE

Resolved:

That due to the receipt of additional information this item be deferred to a future meeting.

15 PLANNING APPLICATION 14/0305 - 115-123 PROMENADE

The Committee considered application 14/0305 for the erection of a five storey building with a raised rotunda at the northern end of the site to provide a bar, restaurant and café at ground floor level with hotel accommodation above comprising 124 en-suite bedrooms accessed through a ground floor reception, with associated car parking and servicing arrangements, following demolition of the existing buildings (Outline proposal) (resubmission of planning application 13/0374) at 115-123 Promenade.

Mr Alan Jones, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application.

Members of the Committee asked questions of Mr Jones regarding the sustainability of the proposal and car parking.

Resolved:

To agree in principle to grant this application (subject toconditions) but to delegate the issuing of the decision notice to the Head of Development Management subject to the provision of a bat survey, viability assessment and written support from hotel operators.

Background papers: Applications, plans and replies to consultations upon the applications

Chairman

(The meeting ended6.15 pm)

Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: Chris Kelly Senior Democratic Services Adviser Tel: (01253) 477164 E-mail: chris.kelly@blackpool.gov.uk This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix to Minutes 11th August 2014

Application Number: 13/0734 External alterations including replacement windows and erection of part two-storey, part single-storey rear extension, second floor rear extension including enclosed roof garden following part-demolition of existing single-storey corridor extension, and use of part-ground floor, part- first floor and second floor as altered as five self-contained permanent flats with associated basement cycle storage, rear bin store, landscaping, car parking and boundary treatment at Blackpool United Hebrew Synagogue, Leamington Road.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposed extensions and alterations would be detrimental to the significance of the Listed Building and would compromise the future optimum viable use of the synagogue as a community asset. The proposal fails to demonstrate that there would be appropriate repair, restoration and maintenance programme for the building which would constitute enabling works which may overcome other Policy issues and hence the proposal is contrary to Policies BH21, LQ1, LQ2, LQ9 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

2. The proposal would further intensify the over-concentration of flat accommodation in the Defined Inner Area, which would conflict with wider efforts for the comprehensive improvement of the neighbourhood as a balanced and healthy community. As such, the proposal would be contrary to Policies HN5 and HN6 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

3. The proposal would result in an unacceptable standard of residential accommodation by virtue of poor outlook and low levels of sunlight and would therefore be significantly detrimental to the residential amenities of future occupiers of the flat accommodation. As such it would be contrary to Policies LQ14, HN5 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 (and the Council's approved Supplementary Planning Document - New Homes from Old Places).

4. The proposal would result in the significant loss of floorspace of this community facility and the applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is no longer a need for this floorspace or its alternative use to meet other community needs and the proposal would therefore be contrary to Policy BH21 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

5. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors which conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 which justify refusal.

Application Number: 13/0736 External alterations including replacement windows and erection of part two-storey, part single-storey rear extension, second floor rear extension including enclosed roof garden following part-demolition of existing single-storey corridor extension, and use of part-ground floor, part- first floor and second floor as altered as five self-contained permanent flats with associated basement cycle storage, rear bin store,

landscaping, car parking and boundary treatment (Application for Listed Building Consent) at Blackpool United Hebrew Synagogue, Learnington Road.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposed extensions and alterations would be detrimental to the significance of the Listed Building and would compromise the future optimum viable use of the synagogue as a community asset. The proposal fails to demonstrate that there would be appropriate repair, restoration and maintenance programme for the building which would constitute enabling works which may overcome other Policy issues and hence the proposal is contrary to Policies BH21, LQ1, LQ2, LQ9 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

2. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors which conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 which justify refusal.

Application Number: 14/0275 External alterations including removal of shop frontage, reinstatement of bay windows to front elevation and use of premises as altered as a place of worship (Mosque) and community/education centre, with two ancillary self-contained flats at first floor level and associated parking to the rear, following demolition of existing rear outbuildings at 187-197 Waterloo Road.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The uses proposed would generate a demand for car parking which could not be met by provision within the application site and, as such, this would lead to additional on street car parking in the area which would be detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety. Notwithstanding the accessibility of the parking proposed to the rear, use of this provision early in the morning or late at night would have the potential to cause noise nuisance to nearby residential neighbours. As such the proposal would be contrary to Policies AS1 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

2. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

Wherever possible, the Local Planning Authority seeks to work proactively with applicants to secure sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool. However, it is considered that the current proposal would be sufficiently detrimental to highway safety and residential amenity as to conflict with paragraph 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies AS1 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and thereby justify refusal. It is considered that these issues cannot be overcome through negotiation.

Application Number: 14/0281 External alterations including new windows and entrance doors to front elevation and new fire doors to front and rear elevations, and use of premises as altered as a gymnasium within Use Class D2 with associated car parking and bin storage at 20 Sanderson Way.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposal would result in the loss of safeguarded employment land to a nonemployment use which would be contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy DE1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016. It would have a detrimental impact on Blackpool's future employment land supply and the proposed redevelopment does not constitute enabling development to satisfy Policy CS3 of the emerging Core Strategy. Furthermore, Blackpool's employment land constraints are acknowledged in the emerging Fylde Core Strategy, which proposes around 15 hectares of employment land in Fylde to help meet Blackpool's future requirement. To allow the release of existing employment land contrary to policy would potentially compromise this joint approach to meeting Blackpool's employment land needs.

2. The proposed development would introduce a large leisure (Use Class D2) use outside the town centre or an edge of town centre location where there are considered to be sequentially more preferable site(s) for such development and hence if approved the proposal would undermine the Council's regeneration objectives for the resort and set a precedent making it difficult for the Council to resist future applications for other out of town centre leisure proposals elsewhere in the Borough. Without an adequate demonstration of need and a limited sequential test, the proposal is contrary to Policy BH12 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and the National Planning Policy Framework (Core planning principle 2 'Ensuring the vitality of town centres').

3. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors - conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 - which justify refusal and which cannot be overcome by negotiation.

Application Number: 14/0305 Erection of a five storey building with a raised rotunda at the northern end of the site to provide a bar, restaurant and cafe at ground floor level with hotel accommodation above comprising 124 en-suite bedrooms accessed through a ground floor reception, with associated car parking and servicing arrangements, following demolition of the existing buildings (Outline proposal) (resubmission of planning application 13/0374) at 115-123 Promenade.

Decision: Defer

Application Number: 14/0366 Erection of two storey side extension following demolition of attached garage at 24 Lodge Court.

Decision: Grant Permission

Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. The external brickwork and roof tiles to be used on the extension hereby approved shall be the same colour, texture and design as those on the existing dwelling, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Council as Local Planning Authority before the development commences.

Reason: In the interests of appearance of the locality, in accordance with Policies LQ1 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001 – 2016.

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) the garage shall not be used for any purpose which would preclude its use for the parking of a motor car.

Reason: In the opinion of the Local Planning Authority the retention of parking space within the site is of importance in safeguarding the appearance of the locality and highway safety, in accordance with Policies AS1 and LQ1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

Application Number: 14/0374 Formation of a new hardstanding at Walkers Hill Farm, 34 Midgeland Road.

Decision: Grant Permission

Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended).

2. Before the installation of the hard-surfacing hereby approved is commenced, the drainage system shown on the drawing labelled "Appendix 1 Land Drainage" and stamped as received by the Council on 17 JUL 2014 shall be provided and shall thereafter be retained. **Reason:** In order to ensure that surface water run-off does not cause localised flooding on the public highway or damage the materials of or structural integrity of the Listed Building in accordance with Policies LQ9 and NE10 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

3. The paving flags to be used shall be autumn brown coloured riven sandstone with handdressed edges as per the sample provided to the Council on 17th July 2014 from North West Reclamation (Fence) Ltd of Clitheroe, unless otherwise first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before development is commenced. **Reason:** In the interests of the appearance of the site in accordance with Policies LQ1 and LQ9 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016. **Application Number: 14/0375** Erection of two, three-storey side extensions, a three-storey rear extension, two front dormers and use of premises as altered as eight permanent self contained flats and erection of two semi detached bungalows with eight private garages and associated parking, bin store, access and landscaping at 119 Newton Drive.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposed side extensions and extensions to the front roof plane would be overly dominant, out of character within the streetscene and in relation to the original property. As such they would be significantly detrimental to the character and appearance of the property and the area due to their scale, height, design, lack of resulting space either side of the building and proximity to the main front elevation of the property. Given the prominent location of the property the extensions as proposed would be contrary to Policies LQ1, LQ2, LQ4 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

2. The proposed bungalows at the rear of the site would constitute unsatisfactory back land development with poor levels of residential amenity in terms of lack of a street frontage, poor outlook, inadequate access, inadequate refuse storage/collection provision and privacy and would appear cramped and hemmed in within the site. As such the proposed bungalows would be contrary to Policies LQ1, LQ2, LQ3 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

3. The means of access to the proposed development would be significantly detrimental to highway safety by virtue of the narrow width of the private access road which would prohibit two way traffic (which in turn would result in vehicles reversing significant distances), the lack of safe and convenient pedestrian access and street lighting and the lack of cycle storage provision. As such the proposed development would be contrary to Policy AS1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001- 2016.

4. The proposed eastern side extension would have a significantly detrimental impact on the residential amenities of the adjoining occupants at Regency Court by virtue of its size, scale and close proximity to the common boundary, resulting in an overbearing impact, visual intrusion and loss of natural light. As such the eastern side extension would be contrary to Policies LQ14 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

5. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors which conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 which justify refusal and which cannot be overcome by negotiation.

Application Number: 14/0460 Erection of two single storey extensions to front elevation to enlarge the existing staff-room and media suite and provide additional office space and a first aid room with associated landscaping works at Baines Endowed C of E School, Penrose Avenue.

Decision: Grant Permission

Conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).

2. Details of the bricks, window frames, door frames and stonework to be used on the external elevations shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development being commenced.

Reason: In the interests of the appearance of the locality, in accordance with Policy LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

3. Notwithstanding the details shown on the approved plan, the fenestration and doorways proposed in the front elevations of the extensions hereby approved shall be set back from the frontage of those elevations by no less than the width of one of the bricks approved pursuant to condition two attached to this permission.

Reason: In order to provide visual depth and interest in the interests of the appearance of the development in accordance with Policies LQ1 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

4. Details of the rainwater goods and the means of draining water from the roof the main building and the extensions hereby approved shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of development. The approved rainwater goods and means of drainage shall then be provided as part of the development and shall thereafter be retained.

Reason: In order to prevent rainwater ingress into the historic main school building and in the interests of the appearance of the development in accordance with Policies LQ1 and LQ14 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

5. a) Notwithstanding the information shown on the approved plan, no development shall take place until full details of both hard and soft landscaping works have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include any proposed changes to existing ground levels, means of enclosure and boundary treatment, areas of soft landscaping, hard surfaced areas and materials, planting plans specifications and schedules (including plant size, species and number/ densities), existing landscaping to be retained, and shall show how account has been taken of any underground services. These details shall also demonstrate that the overall biodiversity value of the site would be maintained following the removal of the existing trees along the frontage of the site.
b) The landscaping works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details within the first planting season following completion of the development hereby approved or in accordance with a programme agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority (whichever is sooner.)

c) Any trees or shrubs planted in accordance with this condition which are removed, uprooted, destroyed, die, or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 5 years of planting shall be replaced within the next planting season by trees or shrubs of similar size and species to those originally required to be planted, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.

Reason: To ensure the site is satisfactorily landscaped in the interests of visual amenity and to ensure there are adequate areas of soft landscaping to act as a soakaway during times of heavy rainfall with regards to Policy LQ6 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

Application Number: 14/0465 External alterations include two new doors to rear and provision of eight car parking spaces to rear and use of ground floor as altered as retail unit (Use Class A1) at Layton Institute, Westcliffe Drive.

Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposed development would result in the loss of a community facility and the applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is no longer a need for the facility or that the Layton Institute building and bowling green could not be adapted to provide an alternative community need or that replacement facilities would be provided elsewhere. The proposed development would set a precedent for similar development and uses of other clubs which would be difficult for the Local Planning Authority to resist in principle. As such, the proposals are considered to be contrary to Policies LQ1 and BH21 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and Part 8 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

2. The proposed development would have a significantly detrimental impact on the residential amenities of existing occupiers on Granby Avenue and the future occupiers of the proposed residential properties by virtue of increased activity around the site including more frequent deliveries and general vehicle movements to the rear of the building, two bin stores, associated refrigeration and air conditioning units and extending the hours that the building is in use to include early morning opening times as well as late night closing times. This would result in a significant increase in noise and disturbance. As such the proposals are contrary to Policies AS1, LQ1, LQ3, BH3 and BH4 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

3. The means of access to the proposed development would be significantly detrimental to highway safety by virtue of inadequate width at the junction with Granby Avenue (which would lead to vehicle conflict and congestion) and inadequate visibility (sightlines) due to vehicles parked on-street. Furthermore, the proposals do not provide any cycle parking and hence they would be contrary to Policy AS1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001 - 2016.

4. The proposals are for an out of centre retail unit which would be contrary to Policies BH12, BH13 and BH16 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016. These policies seek to direct appropriate retail development to suitable sites within the existing town centre or other existing shopping frontages.

5. The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the consolidated first floor social club use proposed would be accessible to all users, including those with impaired mobility and would therefore be contrary to Policy AS1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001 - 2016.

6. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors which conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 which justify refusal and which cannot be overcome by negotiation.

Application Number: 14/0467 Erection of five two-storey dwellinghouses with associated car parking and access from Granby Avenue at Layton Institute, Westcliffe Drive. Decision: Refuse

Reasons:

1. The proposed development would result in the loss of a community facility and the applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is no longer a need for the facility or that the bowling green could not be adapted to provide an alternative community need or replacement facilities would be provided elsewhere and would set a precedent for similar development on other privately owned bowling greens which would be difficult for the Local Planning Authority to resist in principle. As such the proposed development would be contrary to Policies LQ1 and BH21 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and Part 8 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

2. The loss of the bowling green would have a detrimental impact on the group value and appearance of the Layton Institute and its architectural and historic value to the local area which currently contributes significantly to the townscape in providing a focal point of local, social and visual interest and significance. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies LQ1, LQ2, LQ3 and LQ4 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and Part 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework.

3. The proposed development would have a significantly detrimental impact on the residential amenities of the future occupiers of the proposed development by virtue of the density of development and its close proximity to the boundary and rear elevation of the Layton Institute and trees along the boundary with the cemetery. As such it would be an over development of the site, resulting in an overbearing impact, noise/smoke nuisance, poor outlook, overlooking, loss of privacy, increased vehicle movements and creating vehicle and pedestrian conflicts within the site. As such the proposal is contrary to Policies AS1, LQ1, LQ3, BH3 and BH4 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

4. The proposal fails to provide convenient and accessible refuse storage facilities and would require future occupants to move refuse bins excessive distances to the nearest collection point on Granby Avenue. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies AS1, LQ1 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

5. The proposed house at the rear of the site (annotated as Unit 5 on the submitted plans) would constitute unsatisfactory back land development with poor levels of residential amenity in terms of natural light, outlook and privacy and would appear cramped and hemmed in within the site given the close proximity of the proposed dwelling to the three side boundaries and lack of space around the building. It would therefore be contrary to Policies LQ1, LQ2, LQ3 and BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016.

6. ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors - conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 - which justify refusal and which cannot be overcome by negotiation.

Application Number: 14/0514 Retention of partially covered timber decking area to front elevation with glazed windbreaks and disabled access ramp and retention of first floor level balcony to front at 343-347 Promenade.

Decision: Defer

This page is intentionally left blank

Present:

Councillor Owen (in the Chair)

Councillors

Brown Elmes Hutton Mrs Jackson Matthews Smith Stansfield

In Attendance:

Lennox Beattie, Executive and Regulatory Support Manager Karen Galloway, Principal Engineer Transportation Gary Johnston, Head of Development Management

1 SITE VISITS

- 1. Blackpool United Hebrew Synagogue, Learnington Road
- 2. Layton Institute, Westcliffe Drive (two applications)
- 3. 119 Newton Drive
- 4. 24 Lodge Court
- 5. 20 Sanderson Way
- 6. Baines Endowed C of E School, Penrose Avenue
- 7. 187-197 Waterloo Road
- 8. 115-123 Promenade

Chairman

(The meeting ended at 3.55pm)

Any queries regarding these minutes, please contact: Chris Kelly Senior Democratic Services Adviser Tel: (01253) 477164 E-mail: chris.kelly@blackpool.gov.uk This page is intentionally left blank

Report to:	Planning Committee
Decision or Item number	3
Relevant Officer:	Gary Johnston, Head of Development Management
Date of Meeting	8 th September 2014

PLANNING/ENFORCEMENT APPEALS DETERMINED/LODGED

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee is requested to note the planning and enforcement appeals, lodged and determined

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To note the report.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

- 3.1 The Committee is provided with details of the planning and enforcement appeals, lodged and determined for its information.
- 3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No approved by the Council?
- 3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council's approved Yes budget?
- 3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

None

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 Not applicable

5.0 Planning/Enforcement Appeals Determined

5.1 97-107 Egerton Road, Blackpool. FY1 2NN (13/8433)

Appeal by Mr. P C Maher against the service of an Enforcement Notice relating to breach of condition 1 on 12/0799 re: operating hours (it appears to the Council that the condition has not been complied with because the premises has been operating outside of these permitted hours; and breach of condition 2 on 12/0799 re use a spa and sauna with steam-

room and sun-bed facilities (it appears to the Council that the condition has not been complied with, because the premises has been operating as a swinger's club). **Appeal dismissed.**

The Inspector noted that re: condition 1, it is not disputed that the use operates until 03.00 hours on Saturday nights / Sunday mornings. He heard during the Informal Hearing that the premises are locked at midnight so that no one can gain entry. Regardless of whether the activity that takes place constitutes or is akin to a private party the Inspector stated that it seemed that the fact that customers are using the premises after the permitted time is a clear indicator that the condition has not being complied with.

Re: condition 2, the Inspector stated that at the Informal Hearing, it was apparent that the appellant regarded the term "sauna" as synonymous with a facility that offers opportunities for sexual encounters. Whether this is a general perception or one peculiar to Blackpool is hard to say, but the Inspector noted that the dictionary definition of sauna is "a building or room equipped for a Finnish form of steam bath" and those for spa include "an establishment offering steam baths and other health treatments" and "a heated bath or pool of aerated water." In the light of this, the Inspector's view is that it is reasonable to interpret both the description of the approved use and condition 2 in this manner, and neither of these terms necessarily encompasses the provision of facilities for accommodating activity of a sexual nature as part and parcel of the permitted use.

The Inspector's impression following the site visit was that a good deal of the accommodation is given over to facilitating sexual encounters. The sauna, jacuzzi and sunbed facilities remain, but I am unable to concur with the view that the other facilities are ancillary to this. Their scale and nature is such that he regards them as part and parcel of a wider use that amounts to significantly more than that permitted. His view is that, as a matter of fact and degree, the character and nature of the overall use of the premises is such that a significant part of it falls outside the ambit of, and does not accord with, condition 2.

The Inspector said he did not consider it possible to demonstrate 10 years use, and he was not satisfied that the available evidence was sufficient to demonstrate that at the time the notice was issued, it was too late for enforcement action to be taken; the burden of proof that lies with the appellant has not been discharged.

The Inspector then considered the deemed planning application, and he considered the main issue to be whether the living conditions of local residents would be adversely affected. He stated that the activities that take place within the premises are not in themselves likely to be unduly disturbing to local residents. He stated though, that he was less sanguine about the appellant's desire to seek a relaxation of condition 2 to permit the premises to remain open until 03.00 at weekends (Friday and Saturday nights), as a use operating until this time in a largely residential area such as this, is likely to give rise to problems, mainly due to activity associated with comings and goings. Residents are likely to find general conversation, even if it is good natured rather than boisterous, and things such as car doors slamming shut and vehicles arriving and departing, disturbing when such activity occurs during a period when people ought reasonably to be able to enjoy a period of relative peace and quiet.

The Inspector also considered that the requirements of the Enforcement Notice were a reasonable response to the breach of planning control alleged therein, and he did not find them excessive.

Finally, given that a business is involved, with attendant implications for jobs and the local economy, the Inspector considered a 14 day compliance period too short. He therefore extended the compliance period to four months to assist the appellant address the consequences of the enforcement action.

In light of the above, the Inspector **<u>dismissed</u>** the appeal. Compliance with the Enforcement Notice is now due by 22nd December 2014.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of appendices

None

6.0 Planning/Enforcement Appeals lodged

6.1 **351 Promenade, Blackpool. FY1 6BJ (13 / 8370)**

An appeal has been submitted by Mr Nabil Awad against an Enforcement Notice served by Blackpool Council on 15th August 2014, in respect of the erection of timber seating structures and tables on the forecourt.

Does the information submitted include any exempt information? No

List of appendices

None

- 7.0 Legal considerations:
- 7.1 None
- 8.0 Human Resources considerations:
- 8.1 None
- 9.0 Equalities considerations:
- 9.1 None
- **10.0** Financial considerations:
- 10.1 None
- 11.0 Risk management considerations:
- 11.1 None

- **12.0** Ethical considerations:
- 12.1 None
- **13.0** Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:
- 13.1 None
- 14.0 Background papers:
- 14.1 None

Report to:	Planning Committee	
Item number	4	
Relevant Officer:	Tim Coglan, Service Manager, Public Protection.	
Date of Meeting	8 th September 2014	

PLANNING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE

1.0 Purpose of the report:

1.1 The Committee is requested to consider the summary of planning enforcement activity within Blackpool during July 2014.

2.0 Recommendation(s):

2.1 To note the outcomes of the cases set out below and to support the actions of the Service Manager, Public Protection Department, in authorising the notices set out below.

3.0 Reasons for recommendation(s):

- 3.1 The Committee is provided with a summary of planning enforcement activity for its information.
- 3.2a Is the recommendation contrary to a plan or strategy adopted or No approved by the Council?
- 3.2b Is the recommendation in accordance with the Council's approved Yes budget?
- 3.3 Other alternative options to be considered:

Not applicable. The report is for noting only.

4.0 Council Priority:

4.1 Not applicable

5.0 Background Information

5.1 Cases

New cases

In total, 81 new cases were registered for investigation, compared to 74 received in July 2013.

Resolved cases

In July 2014, four cases were resolved by negotiation without recourse to formal action, compared with ten in July 2013.

Closed cases

In total, 16 cases were closed during the month (34 in July 2013). These cases include those where there was no breach of planning control found, no action was appropriate (e.g. due to more effective action by other agencies, such as the police) or where it was considered not expedient to take action, such as due to the insignificant nature of the breach.

Formal enforcement notices / s215 notices / BCNs

- No enforcement notices authorised in July 2014 (two in July 2013);
- No s215 notices authorised in July 2014 (one in July 2013);
- No Breach of Condition notices authorised in July 2014 (one in July 2013);

relating to those cases set out in the table below

- Two enforcement notices served in July 2014 (none in July 2013);
- Four s215 notices served in July 2014 (three in July 2013);
- No Breach of Condition notices served in July 2014 (none in July 2013).

Enforcement notices / S215 notices served in July 2014

Ref	Address	Case	Dates
12/8073	36 Shaw Road	Poor condition	Served 02/07/2014. Compliance due by 11/12/2014
13/8248	99 Hemingway	Poor condition	Served 02/07/2014. Compliance due by 11/02/2015
13/8531	18 Yorkshire Street	Poor condition	Served 02/07/2014. Compliance due by 13/10/2014
13/8292	242 Central Drive	Poor condition	Served 09/07/2014. Compliance due by 20/02/2015
13/8255	239-241 Lytham Road / 2 Bagot Street	Planning permission granted for installation of shop-front and use of premises as altered as public house and cabaret bar. Condition 2 re: external alterations and condition 4 re: sound and vibration proofing have not been complied with	Served 22/07/2014. Compliance due as follows: Cease the use of the premises as a public house and cabaret bar – 07/10/2014. Re-instate previous shop front – 07/11/2014. OR Carry out external alterations to comply with drawing no. 013/033/P/01 Rev H – 07/11/2014. Submit plans to the Local Planning Authority for sound and vibration proofing – 07/10/2014 Once agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority install and retain agreed sound and vibration proofing – 07/11/2014
13/8418	244 Dickson Road	Unauthorised installation of an externally housed roller shutter with associated housing box and guide rails	Served 31/07/2014. Compliance due by 11/11/2014

Does the information submitted include any exempt information?

No

List of Appendices:

None

6.0 Legal considerations) Legal c	onsiderations
--------------------------	-----------	---------------

- 6.1 None
- 7.0 Human Resources considerations:
- 7.1 None
- 8.0 Equalities considerations:
- 8.1 None
- 9.0 Financial considerations:
- 9.1 None
- 10.0 Risk management considerations:
- 10.1 None
- **11.0** Ethical considerations:
- 11.1 None
- **12.0** Internal/ External Consultation undertaken:
- 12.1 None
- **13.0** Background papers:
- 13.1 None

COMMITTEE DATE: <u>08/09/2014</u>

Application Reference:		12/0485
WARD: DATE REGISTERED LOCAL PLAN ALLO	-	Ingthorpe 21/08/12 Main Industrial / Business Area
APPLICATION TYPE APPLICANT:	:	Full Planning Permission A. Thompson
PROPOSAL:	Retention of single storey extension to existing unit and continued use of premises as ice skating centre with associated dance studio, storage space, café, external plant, car and coach parking, service yard and cycle store.	
LOCATION:		ILDING, BRISTOL AVENUE, BLACKPOOL, FY2 0JF
Summary of Recommendation: Refuse		

CASE OFFICER

M Shaw

INTRODUCTION

This application has been previously considered by the Planning Committee at its meetings on 14th January 2013 and 11th February 2013. The Committee resolved to grant planning permission for the proposed development at its meeting on 11th February 2013 subject to a number of conditions including the provision of the parking area, adoption of a travel plan, an hours of use restriction and a restriction of the use(s). However, upon issuing the planning permission the Council's decision was challenged in the High Court by Eversheds on 9th August 2013 acting on behalf of the owners of Sub-Zero in Cleveleys. The grounds of the challenge were as follows and the Judge's comments are summarised after each ground:-

- breach of natural justice- 'it is least arguable that the agent's late report (portfolio of available employment properties) had a significant effect on members' consideration of employment land yet its very late arrival prevented proper consideration by the case officer or the Claimant.'
- **procedural irregularity** 'the committee report advised the proposal was not in accordance with the development plan. Nine policies were listed and the proposal was said to be not in accordance with four of the policies. However in order to conform with the responsibility to determine the application in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise, an overall view has to be taken whether there is compliance or conflict overall with the development plan. The Council has not formed such a view'
- failure to address the National Planning Policy Framework- 'the reasons for the decision cite the proposal does not accord with 'elements of the NPPF'. In fact where there is a failure to comply with the requirements of the sequential test then the NPPF directs that the application should be refused' (para 27 of the NPPF)

- failure to address the correct test under the employment policy- 'it is arguable that simply to proceed on the basis of a long vacancy as a countervailing factor to loss of employment land makes no sense in the absence of evidence about what (if anything) has been done to stop it being vacant'
- irrationality- linked trips- Claimant-'members seem to have had regard to the potential for linked trips with other local leisure uses. No evidence has been provided to substantiate any potential for reduced reliance upon the motor car' Judge- 'I do not accept this, there is evidence about the advantage of proximity with other leisure facilities and the Council was entitled to form a view about this.'
- screening opinion- Claimant- 'the amount of information submitted with the application does not address many of the factors that would need to be considered before forming a view upon whether significant environmental effects would arise e.g. noise, contaminated land, air quality. Judge- 'it is hard to discern what evidence had been provided which could have enabled the case officer to come to an informed view of the likely environmental impact.'

The decision to grant planning permission was subsequently quashed by consent on 12th December 2013 and the application referred back to the Council for reconsideration. A copy of the Judge's decision is appended to this report (Appendix 5a). In response to the judgment the Council requested additional information from the applicant's agent to assist with the reconsideration of the application and a number of detailed reports have now been received (see Details of Proposal section of this report) and further re-consultations and re-notifications have been carried out.

The application proposal has also been recently amended to reflect the works which have been carried out at the site including the part demolition of one of the buildings, which was originally included in the application, and the revision of part of the car parking area, a widening of the proposed new access, and a revision of the internal layout deleting the mezzanine floor level. As a result of these changes the proposal floor area has reduced from 3665 sqm to 3150 sqm, a reduction of over 500 sqm.

Since the application was last considered in February 2013 there have been a number of additional matters of note which are as follows:-

- A planning application for the erection of 46 houses has been refused by the Planning Committee on 14th January 2014 on adjoining land within the former TVR complex (ref 13/0614) on grounds which included the loss of employment land.
- The Council has progressed its Core Strategy to submission stage and as part of the evidence base the Council has published its Blackpool Employment Land Study (BELS) in June 2014
- As part of the Duty to Cooperate Fylde Borough Council has allocated 14 hectares of land as part of the proposed Whyndyke Farm development to meet Blackpool's future employment land requirements.
- The Government has also published the National Planning Policy Guidance in March 2014 to replace and update earlier guidance and set out the Government's position regarding the planning system.

The application is therefore presented to the Committee again for reconsideration.

SITE DESCRIPTION

Metal clad two storey scale formerly vacant industrial premises forming part of the former TVR site in Bispham involving approximately 3150 sqm of floorspace located at the rear of the site and backing onto Moor Park. Fronting Bristol Avenue are two storey brick buildings also forming part of the former TVR complex and a number of units have been converted into small scale business and leisure units, including two fitness gyms. Directly across Bristol Avenue is the Council's household waste and recycling centre which operates on a one way system with an access and egress onto Bristol Avenue. The character of Bristol Avenue is mixed with residential property and the Moor Park leisure and medical complex located at the western end towards Bispham Road, and business and industrial uses along the central and eastern sections. The application site together with the refuse site and adjoining businesses are designated as a Main Industrial/ Business Area under Policy DE1 of the adopted Local Plan. A number of industrial buildings on the former TVR site have been demolished including the buildings to the front and side of the application premises.

DETAILS OF PROPOSAL

This is a retrospective application in that the most of the conversion and extension work has already been carried out and the use itself has commenced. This matter has been passed onto the Planning Enforcement Manager for investigation. The application premises are two storeys in scale, and profile metal clad. The Class D2 Uses (Assembly and Leisure) comprise two ice rinks, the larger rink measuring 52 metres x 26 metres (sized to National Hockey League standard) a much smaller 'studio' rink measuring 14 metres x 20 metres with ancillary, cafe, changing rooms and a dance studio and storage space in a separate building. The latest plans submitted with the application indicate that the main rink will be used for competitive ice hockey matches. The proposal also involves external plant areas located either side of the building.

Two vehicle access points are proposed into the site from Bristol Avenue, which involves utilising an existing access for coaches and deliveries which is opposite the exit from the Council's refuse and recycling site and a second, new access into the car parking area following the demolition of a single storey building on the site frontage (adjacent to the Bispham Body Senze gymnasium).

It is stated that the proposal will employ 30 staff (15 full time and 15 part time) and that the opening hours would be from 10am to 10pm Monday to Fridays and from 9am to 10pm on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays, although it is alleged it may be opening before 10am on weekdays.

The application submission includes a Transport Assessment, an Additional Parking Assessment, an Accessibility Questionnaire, a Justification Statement, marketing details, a Planning, Design and Access Statement and Sequential Test and Impact Assessment. A revised car parking layout has also been recently received showing 91 spaces, including nine mobility spaces, cycle/ motorcycle/ minibus parking, together with a pedestrian footway from Bristol Avenue through the car park into the facility.

Following the quashing of the planning permission the application is now also accompanied by an air quality report, noise assessment, ecology report, portfolio of vacant industrial premises, socio-economic report, drainage submission, contaminated land report and cultural heritage statement and an Energy and Environmental Report. Addendums have also been received relating to the socio economic statement and the sequential test and an up-dated portfolio of vacant employment premises based on premises in Blackpool over 465 sqm (5000 sqft) and an up-dated preliminary risk assessment has also been submitted.

The Committee will have visited the site prior to its meeting on 8th September 2014.

PLANNING HISTORY

10/0079- Use of premises (unit 1) as fitness centre/gymnasium with ancillary cafe. Granted 25^{th} March 2010

12/0770- Use of premises (unit 9) as fitness centre/gymnasium. Granted 21 December 2012

13/0614- Erection of 46, two storey dwellinghouses comprising semi-detached and mews properties with associated access from Ashfield Road, car parking and landscaping on land immediately to the west of the application site. Refused 14th January 2014

Reasons included 'The proposal would result in the loss of safeguarded employment land to a non-employment use, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy DE1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016. It would have a detrimental impact on Blackpool's future employment land supply and the proposed redevelopment does not constitute enabling development to satisfy Policy CS3 of the emerging Core Strategy. Furthermore, Blackpool's employment land constraints are acknowledged in the emerging Fylde Core Strategy, which proposes around 15 hectares of employment land in Fylde to help meet Blackpool's future requirement. To allow the release of existing employment land contrary to policy would potentially compromise this joint approach to employment land provision'.

14/0104- Demolition of two storey building on site frontage. Granted 10th March 2014

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES

- Principle of Use- (A) the loss of employment land and (B) the location of new tourist/ leisure facilities
- Sequential Test
- Parking/ Traffic Generation/ Highway Safety
- Impact on Residential Amenity
- Other issues arising from the additional application submissions

CONSULTATIONS

Head of Transportation - In response to the **original submission** objected on the following grounds:-

1. A detailed Transport Statement has been submitted to accompany the application, TRICS data has been used to calculate and whilst I do not dispute the figures provided I am somewhat concerned the data is based on a one hour period covering different parts of the day. The time period should have covered a longer part of the peak period. It is demonstrated that the proposed use of the site will not adversely impact on the highway, this maybe true on paper, however given the location of the proposal site, accessibility is not great, therefore it is my view the majority of trips will be car borne, more so than that demonstrated in the Transport Statement.

2. Delivery and coach access is shown to the west side of the building, if coaches access the premises at this point they will be unable to turn around in the service yard, a tracking plan should be provided. If coach parking is permitted in the main car park, the parking spaces cannot all be used resulting in overspill parking onto Bristol Avenue, the majority of which is restricted resulting in highway safety concerns.

3. Appendix D of the Transport Statement refers to vehicle tracking, none is provided, only visibility is shown.

4. This is an odd location for an ice skating centre/dance studio and is there actually a need? The neighbouring units operate as commercial businesses so whilst traffic generation and flows are high during the normal working day this proposal due to proposed operating hours will increase vehicle movements into the evening and weekends.

In response to the additional details submitted with the application, including the revised car parking layout and a vehicle tracking plan referred to in point 2 above, the Head of Transportation verbally reiterated his opposition prior to the application being approved in February 2013 on the basis that there are inadequate car parking and coach parking facilities for the proposal, and inadequate servicing and turning facilities within the application site to cater for the proposed use.

Comments are awaited on the revised parking layout and access and will be reported via the update note

Head of Neighbourhood Services- there should be no problems with noise from the venue and there are no concerns relating to air quality.

Contaminated Land Officer- has requested further information given the potential pollution linkage. A revised contaminated land document has been submitted. Looking at the report submitted on 30th June 2014 it would appear that the intended method of remediation is to cap it through the use of tarmac. This is acceptable. However they have not stated if materials will be taken off site, and if so how this will be disposed of. Is the intention to leave existing and then add another layer of tarmac? The agent's response is awaited on this matter and any comments received will be reported via the update note.

United Utilities- any comments received will be reported via the update note

Environment Agency- have reviewed the drainage strategy and have no objections in principle subject to a condition being imposed relating to the submission and approval of a surface water drainage scheme.

Sustainability Manager- there are no issues from an ecology point of view

Drainage- any comments will be reported via the update note

Any further comments, including on the latest submissions, will be reported via the update note.

PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbour notification letters were sent out on 23rd August 2012 and 2nd May 2014

Site Notices displayed on 30th August 2012

In response to the neighbour notifications **159 letters of support** have been received and **47 letters of objection** have been received. The comments received from both supporters and objectors to the proposal have been received from far and wide including Preston, Poulton, Lancaster, Freckleton, Fleetwood, Rochdale, Southport, Stockport, Bolton, St Anne's, Oldham and Burnley (supporters) and from Preesall, Hull, Rossall and Widnes (objectors) together with many comments from Blackpool, Poulton, Cleveleys and Bispham both in support and opposition. There are also two letters of support from Bristol Avenue itself and one letter of objection from Bristol Avenue. The comments made are as follows:-

Support

- competition between the existing and proposed rinks is not a bad but is a healthy thing
- the existing rinks are often overcrowded
- more rinks can only be a good thing
- a full sized rink is required in the area and the playing of ice hockey games there has the potential to create publicity akin to Blackpool FC
- it has a NHL sized rink for ice hockey
- the proposal will promote skating as a sport
- its a great idea to bring curling to the area
- the dance studio would be welcomed by many
- would bring new people into sport and more money into Blackpool
- in order to skate at a high level of competition a full sized rink is needed
- proposal would cater for residents of all ages and abilities and improve health and well being
- it will be good for the area and create jobs providing all year round employment
- proposal will save on travelling costs to Blackburn/ some skaters cannot afford to travel to Blackburn to use their facilities. Blackburn is an hours drive away
- the morning trip to Blackburn for training is just not a viable option
- the other local rinks are not up to a great standard
- will turn this brownfield site into a state of the art facility, left the building would continue to deteriorate
- building has stood empty for six years
- the proposal would regenerate this area of town
- a lot of the opposition to the application is from out of town
- will keep youngsters off the street
- will be something for the local community and beyond
- will put Bispham on the map as a place to visit
- it is located next to the pool and will open up more opportunities for families to enjoy a day out at relatively small cost
- it would bring business to Bispham village
- proposal will be a great asset for the town
- increased sports participation will help children fight obesity and type two diabetes
- one supporter would join a nearby gym while her daughter skates
- a sports complex has developed on Bristol Avenue and the proposal will complement this
- public transport is considerably better and closer by than Cleveleys
- an excellent idea to give the community a facility to match the on-going aspirations of the town

Objection

Six letters from **Walsingham Planning Consultants** submitted on behalf of the owners of Jubilee Leisure Park in Cleveleys, dated 21 December 2013, 3 January 2013, 31 January 2013, 12 February 2013 and 23 May 2014 and 18th July 2014 regarding the impact of the proposal on their ice skating facility.

- It is stated the proposal is contrary to both local and national planning policy,
- there is an undersupply of employment land in Blackpool. The Council's Employment Land report demonstrates there is a shortage of employment land available to provide for the Borough's requirements for the next 15 years. The report states that as Blackpool cannot meet its own employment needs the strategy must be to protect and capitalise on existing employment sites.
- as such given this undersupply the application site measuring approximately one hectare plays an important role in the provision of sufficient employment land and therefore must be protected.
- the premises have not been adequately marketed and there is in fact interest in re-using the premises for employment use.
- the proposed leisure use on this employment site conflicts with the emerging Core Strategy and Policy CS3 reinforces the protection of existing employment allocations, a decision to approve the application would be contrary to the Council's Core Strategy objectives and policies.
- in the absence of any material considerations to sufficiently outweigh the harm caused planning permission should be refused.
- existing employment sites should be promoted, regenerated and redeveloped to ensure the best use of employment land and buildings. However it is clear from the marketing report that this has not been the case. There has been interest in the site from employment uses but did not proceed due to the building being too large but the building could have been sub-divided.
- if employment land continues to be lost the wider area will lose its appeal for employment uses to likely investors.
- the site is unsuitable for leisure uses which should be directed towards the town centre.
- the sequential test is flawed and the agent has carried out a very limited search. The submission does not thoroughly address the impact of the proposed rink on either the town centre or on existing rinks in the area.
- the latest sequential test is inadequate, misleading and inconsistent with the original sequential test. The catchment area for the rink remains unclear, originally a ten mile radius has changed to the Blackpool Borough boundary yet it is clear from various statements that the rink will cater for people living across the North West.
- as the site is out of centre, all out of centre sites should be reviewed and compared in relation to their sustainability and accessibility.
- the sequential test is so fundamentally flawed that any planning permission granted on the basis of it would be challengeable in the Courts.
- it is considered that there is not enough demand for three rinks within such a small catchment area. Both existing rinks benefit from links trips to other recreational uses.
- the north west is already home to two other larger scale ice rinks which are more appropriately located within or edge of town centre and readily accessible.
- local residents already have the choice of two local rinks accessible to both local people and visitors by a range of means of transport.
- the proposal would lead to a loss of jobs at existing ice rinks.
- this is more than a local facility and will attract visitors from across the North West.
- the Sub Zero ice centre provides a home for three local ice hockey teams.

- access to the site is poor and Bristol Avenue is not served by buses and the rink would generate a large number of car journeys.
- it is in an unsustainable location and not accessible by a range of public transport and is reliant on travel by private car and is therefore contrary to planning policy and in particular the NPPF.
- the fact that there are a number of vacant premises is not considered to be a material consideration and should not lead the Council to conclude it is acceptable to lose designated employment land.
- the Council must be consistent with the decision to refuse a housing development on adjoining land being refused due to the loss of safeguarded employment land.
- the larger rink does not meet the requirements for either a NHL or IIHF competition standard sized rink. The application should be accompanied by a flood risk assessment and noise assessment.
- many of the reports have been produced retrospectively which diminishes the Council's ability to judge the environmental impacts.
- there would be increased and unacceptable levels of traffic congestion leading to loss of appeal for employment investors.
- an ice rink is not typically found in residential or employment areas catering for local, day to day needs moreover the scale indicates the rink will attract visitors from across the north west and potentially further afield
- it is not clear whether the recommendations of the either the air quality assessment or contamination report have been implemented
- if the Council is minded to approve the application it would be open to further legal challenge
- the agent has failed to take into account the Blackpool Employment Land Study (BELS) issued June 2014 and produced to inform the Core Strategy. This is an important consideration, which was not available when the proposal was first considered.
- the BELS identifies a requirement for 31.5 hectares of employment land for the period up to 2027 and quantifies the supply as between 17.8 and 21.6 hectares. The Study refers to 14 hectares of employment land being allocated at Whyndyke Farm within Fylde to help meet Blackpool's requirements.
- in terms of the TVR premises the BELS advises of longer term re-development to provide modern business/ industrial units and advises that Moor Park Industrial Estate has a continuing important role serving the north of the town. It is clear there are very limited employment premises in the size range 501- 1000 sqm. Of the 6 units in total two fall within the application site
- officers should not allow the existence of the on- going works and actions to have any bearing on the Council's decision. The applicant's behaviour has demonstrated a complete disregard for the planning system

other objections raised the following matters:-

- why create another rink when we already have two rinks on the Fylde within reach of holidaymakers?
- another rink will just end up killing the sport and there is not enough trade to go around
- it will cause job losses at the other two rinks
- three rinks just not viable, it will be a huge financial risk
- the existing rinks are running under capacity
- should open a facility there that we don't already have (roller rink, bowling alley, martial arts)
- proposal could decimate the new Cleveleys sea front
- it is five-ten minutes walk from the nearest bus stop to the premises

- TVR is out of the way with no public transport at night
- concerns about traffic increase/ road not large enough for coaches
- there are 30 parking spaces and 15 employees leaving only 15 spaces for the public
- since the health centre opened, in combination with the pool and school the congestion at the mini roundabout has been terrible
- most of the people in support are already skaters
- noise nuisance for residents of Bristol Avenue
- should build industrial units for new business thus offering more employment opportunities
- Blackpool is losing too much of its manufacturing and skilled trades

Objection From The Pleasure Beach dated 20th May 2014 stating:-

- The proposal is contrary to Policy DE1 of the Local Plan and Blackpool has an undersupply of employment land.
- The application has not adequately addressed the marketing of the site for employment use, including the potential sub-division of the unit.
- To grant this application would be inconsistent with the decision on 13/0614 which sought to protect employment land.
- The proposal would not provide a facility which is not already catered for and the proposal would adversely affect the existing ice rinks.
- The proposal does not pass the sequential test and ignores Core Strategy Policy.
- The ability to assess environmental issues is questioned given that the works are now substantially complete.
- The application has not satisfied the National Planning Policy Framework with regards to minimising reliance on the private motor car.

Councillor Andrea Kay of Wyre Borough Council states the location is unsuitable for an ice rink due to the surrounding area, the lack of travel arrangements and parking in the area. The area is already congested due to the amount of traffic from schools, health centre and sports centre. The opening of a rink within ten miles of the Pleasure Beach and Sub-Zero could cause another business closure adding to unemployment.

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY AND GUIDANCE

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published in March 2012 and states that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute towards sustainable development. There are three strands to sustainable development namely economic, social and environmental. Proposed development that accords with an up-to-date Local Plan should be approved and proposed development that conflicts should be refused unless other material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Government is committed to ensuring that the planning system does everything it can to support sustainable development...planning policies should avoid long term protection of sites allocated for employment use where there is no reasonable prospect of a site being used for that purpose...planning policies should be positive and promote competitive town centre environments and set out policies for their management and growth...recognise town centres as the heart of their communities and pursue policies to support their viability and vitality...allocate a range of suitable sites to meet the scale and type of retail, leisure, tourism, community etc needed in town centres...allocate appropriate edge of centre sites for main town centre uses...if sufficient edge of centre sites cannot be identified set policies for meeting the needs in other accessible locations that are well connected to the town centre...LPA's should apply a sequential test for main town centre uses (which includes leisure uses such as ice rinks) that are not in an existing centre and not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan...LPA's should require an impact assessment for leisure development not in an existing centre and not in accordance with an up-to-date Local Plan if the proposal is above 2,500 sqm...planning policies should aim for a balance of land uses so people can be encouraged to minimise journey lengths for employment, shopping, leisure and other activities.

National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG) was published in March 2014 and consolidates and up-dates guidance and includes advice regarding from when is permission required and making a planning application through to determining an application and appeals with a whole range of topics also covered including ensuring the vitality of town centres and cross references with the NPPF.

SAVED POLICIES: BLACKPOOL LOCAL PLAN 2001-2016

RR1- Visitor Attractions BH3- Residential and Visitor Amenity BH11- Shopping and Supporting Use- Overall Approach BH12- Retail Development and Supporting Town Centre Uses LQ1- Lifting the Quality of Design LQ14- Extensions and Alterations DE1- Industrial and Business Land Provision AS1- General Development Requirements AS2- New Development with Significant Transport Implications

EMERGING PLANNING POLICY

Blackpool Local Plan: Part 1 - Core Strategy: Proposed Submission

The Core Strategy Proposed Submission was agreed for consultation by the Council's Executive Committee on 16th June 2014 and by the full Council on 25th June 2014. The document was subsequently published for public consultation on 4th July 2014 for a period of eight weeks (the closing date for comments is 29th August 2014). Once this consultation period has closed, the intention is that the document will be submitted for consideration by an independent Planning Inspector through an Examination in Public in 2015.

Emerging policies in the Core Strategy Proposed Submission that are relevant to this application are:

Policy CS1- Strategic Direction and Location of Development- states that the spatial focus for Blackpool's regeneration and supporting growth focusing on the town centre, the resort core and neighbourhoods within the inner areas.

Policy CS3- Economic Development and Employment- states that sustainable economic development will be promoted to support and grow the local economy to meet employment needs with a focus on safeguarding around 180 hectares of existing industrial/ business land

Policy CS4- Retail and Other Town Centre Uses

Policy CS5- Connectivity- states that new developments should be in locations that are easily accessible by sustainable transport modes to manage congestion and to minimise future carbon emissions.

Policy CS17- Blackpool Town Centre

Policy CS20- Leisure Quarter- comprehensive re-development of the entire site will be promoted and encouraged for major leisure development of national significance where the cumulative impact of a single or group of leisure uses will provide a compelling new reason to visit Blackpool.

Policy CS21- Leisure and Business Tourism- in order to physically and economically regenerate Blackpool's resort core the focus will be on strengthening the resorts' appeal to attract new audiences year round achieved by supporting proposals for new high quality tourism attractions focused on the town centre and resort core including major development which have the potential to become wider catalysts for regeneration to improve the visitor experience.

There are no policies within the emerging document that would contradict those in the adopted Local Plan with regard to this proposal. The Core Strategy evidence base includes the Blackpool Employment Land Study and Employment Land Technical Paper

ASSESSMENT

<u>Principle of Use</u> - consideration of the principle of the use can be split into two strands, one relating to the loss of employment land (approx 3150 sqm) within an area designated under Policy DE1 of the Local Plan as a Main Industrial/ Business Area and the second relates to the location of a significant tourism/ leisure facility in a suburban area of the town well away from town centre and resort core. These two issues will be considered in turn:-

loss of employment land- Policy DE1 of the Local Plan states that the permitted uses for the Moor Park/ Bristol Avenue industrial/ business estate are offices, research and development, light/general industry and warehousing falling within Use Classes B1, B2 and B8. The Policy also states specifically that retail or other non- Class B uses will not be permitted. The ice rinks with associated facilities fall with Use Class D2 'Assembly and Leisure' whereas the authorised use of the premises is general industrial use falling within Class B2. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy DE1 of the Local Plan and Policies CS1 and CS3 of the Core Strategy.

The proposal involves the loss of allocated industrial land and both the Local Plan and Core Strategy policies seek to safeguard Blackpool's existing industrial/ business estates of around 180 hectares for employment use given the limited supply of employment land within the town. Since the application was considered by the Planning Committee in January and February 2013 Fylde Council has allocated 14 hectares of employment land at Whyndyke Farm to meet Blackpool's future employment land needs up to 2027 because we are short of employment land. Much of the former TVR premises, of which the application premises form a part, have been sub-divided and a number of units have been brought back into industrial/ business use particularly along the Bristol Avenue frontage. Although a number of buildings on the site have also been demolished, in planning land use terms, this land is still available for industrial/ business development.

The Council has also published the Blackpool Employment Land Study (BELS) in June 2014 which informs the Core Strategy and was not available at the time the application was first considered. The Study identifies a requirement for 31.5 hectares up to 2027 and the available supply is up to 21.6 hectares. The 14 hectare employment land allocation in Fylde through the Duty to Cooperate will help meet Blackpool's future employment land

requirements. The Study advises that the Moor Park Industrial Estate has a continuing important role serving the northern end of the town.

The application premises had been vacant for approximately six years and evidence of marketing has been submitted to support the application. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that long term protection of employment sites should be avoided where there is no reasonable prospect of the site being used for that purpose. However given the shortage of available employment land within the town, and the desire of having a range of sites, in terms of size, type and location, protected and kept available for use, the proposal involves the long term loss of a significant amount of floorspace which would set a damaging precedent making it difficult to resist significant other non employment uses being introduced into designated industrial/ business areas. We have already seen with outline planning application 13/0614 that there is a desire to re-develop adjoining designated employment land for non employment uses (in the case of 13/0614 this involved the erection of 46 houses) and the approval of the ice rink proposal would make the continued resistance of the adjoining housing proposal much more difficult. This would also put other existing employment sites at risk and undermine investor confidence in such areas.

It is also important to note given the existence of two rinks within the Blackpool area that there is not considered to any overriding need for a third skating facility, albeit a much larger one, to necessitate losing such a large area of designated employment land/ floorspace particularly when there is an acknowledged shortage of employment land.

Whilst the proposal itself has been said to be employment generating, this argument could be used to justify other inappropriate development e.g.: retail development, and is not in itself justification to permit the loss of Class B employment premises. The two existing fitness gyms (which are Class D2 uses) within the former TVR site are much smaller (500 sqm and 648 sqm respectively) facilities primarily serving a local catchment area and could be argued actually support existing employment businesses. They are also more flexible in nature being readily capable of being converted back into industrial/ employment uses with the removal of the equipment. The principle of losing 3150 sqm of floorspace to a Class D2 use is therefore considered unacceptable. The marketing details submitted with the application show that there was interest in occupying the premises for business/ industrial use although prospective tenants considered the unit to be too large, which leads to the question of why could this unit have not been sub-divided into smaller units to meet the demand for such smaller units? It is noted that the landowner has cleared adjoining buildings within the former TVR site which were then subject of the planning application for 46 houses ref 13/0614. This could be considered to put in question the land owner's genuine commitment to finding appropriate new businesses to occupy units on the site.

The initial portfolio of available employment units submitted prior to the Planning Committee meeting in February 2013 was up-dated in January 2014 and highlighted approximately 80 premises/ sites which were available between 372 sqm (4000 sqft) and over 2137 sqm (23000 sqft) although it included sites outside of Blackpool, which is irrelevant given that it is the acknowledged shortage of sites within Blackpool that is in question. It also included un-developed sites although it is part of the agent's case that a new building facility is not an option. An up-dated search in June 2104 highlighted available units within Blackpool over 465 sqm (5000 sqft) which returned a total of 27 premises meeting the criteria. Six premises are shown to be near the application site and include premises on Moor Park Avenue and at Britannia House, 281 Bristol Avenue of a comparable size to the application premises. The submission concludes that the proposal would have no significant impact on businesses wishing to locate in the area. It is further stated that the site

is not well placed to cater for large B2 or B8 units being within the urban area and it is considered land on the periphery such as Whyndyke Farm is more preferable.

However it should be noted that new industrial/ business units have been and continue to be built nearby on Kincraig Road and Faraday Way including the new Royal Mail facility, akin to a Class B8 warehouse and distribution unit with ancillary offices approved by Committee in February this year (ref 13/0784) and due to commence on site in the near future. This is ample evidence that the area is successful and viable for business/ industrial development and is well located to access Amounderness Way and the motorway network.

The Whyndyke Farm planning application (ref 11/0316) adjacent Junction 4 of the M55 submitted in June 2011 initially involved up to 2000 dwellings with associated development. However revisions made to the application have incorporated up to 20 hectares of Class B2 and B8 industrial/ business land. Most of the 90 hectare site lies within Fylde Borough with a strip of the Preston New Road frontage and land to the rear of the new mental health facility within Blackpool. The Fylde Borough Council Core Strategy sets aside 14 hectares of this industrial land to meet Blackpool's future employment land requirements which itself confirms the position regarding Blackpool's shortage of employment land.

location of new tourist/ leisure facilities- Policy RR1 of the Local Plan states that within the defined Resort Core the development of tourist attractions drawing large numbers of visitors will be encouraged. Outside the resort core visitor attractions will only be permitted:-where a site is specifically allocated for this purpose <u>or</u>

- where it could not be accommodated collectively or individually on a site or sites within the resort core;
- there are good public transport facilities available between the site and the town centre and resort core;
- and the use would be complementary to attractions within the resort core;
- and the proposal would not undermine the pace and extent of regeneration within the resort core.

This policy is reinforced by Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy which states that new high quality tourism attractions will be focused on the town centre and resort core. Outside the resort core new tourist investment will be focused predominantly on outdoor leisure facilities which support and do not undermine resort regeneration.

The size of the proposed ice skating centre/ dance studio with 3150 sqm of Class D2 'Assembly and Leisure' use includes many potential uses which would be recognised as tourist facilities/ visitor destination particularly given the amount of floorspace involved and a unit of this size cannot reasonably be said to be solely catering to a local demand and given that there are already two more accessible ice rinks within easy reach, but would be expected to attract visitors from a much wider catchment area, including those visiting to play/ watch organised ice hockey matches, as stated in the application submission. The comments received on the application seem to clearly indicate that the Blackburn rink, which is a comparable size with the proposal, is a regional facility. The wide geographical area from where comments have been received on the application also show that the proposal is of regional interest. There would also be nothing to prevent the larger rink for example being used for events or tournaments which would themselves attract significant numbers of visitors and detract from the resort core. There are only two other comparably sized rinks in the North West at Blackburn and Altrincham which suggests, contrary to the agent's submission, that this is a regional rather than solely a local facility.

The sequential test initially submitted by the applicant listed five other sites within the 10 mile radius stated as being the search area, two at Cornford Road, one at Hoo Hill, one in Weeton and the fifth on Amy Johnson Way. Subsequently, and following a request by officers, other town centre and resort core sites have been considered (and discounted) as being either too small or unsuitable for conversion to the proposed use, which requires a large open space to accommodate the larger rink. The 'Leisure Quarter' site (LQ), to the south of Blackpool Town Centre, in terms of the conversion of existing buildings is considered by the agents to be wholly unsuitable. They state it is neither suitable nor viable to construct a new purpose built facility, although it is not stated why it is neither suitable nor viable to convert. Within the LQ site only the Courts and Police Station have the potential to house an ice rink based on overall floor area. However neither is suitable to such a conversion and the LQ site is therefore considered by the agents to be unsuitable for the proposal. The former Syndicate nightclub was also included in this sequential test and discounted (however the building is in the process of being demolished).

An addendum to the sequential test has been submitted which amended the area of search to Blackpool Borough boundary looking at premises over 465 sqm (5000sqft) including the former Apollo Electrical Store (now demolished), the former Rumours Nightclub and vacant unit off Waterloo Road and stating that the area of search for alternative sites has been confined to Blackpool as the applicants consider that it is not a tourist facility relying on a passing trade. Although there has been nothing presented with the application to suggest there is any significant local unmet demand for a third ice rink and the strong probability is that there will be significant trade taken away from existing facilities and the rink will also have a much wider catchment area than that being suggested in order to be viable. The Apollo building was considered by the agents to be too small at 696sqm, the Rumours building is set over several floors, which is unsuitable, and the Waterloo Road building is narrow and has poor access and limited parking.

The application site is classified as being of low accessibility and although there are bus routes relatively nearby the site is not considered particularly accessible to either the town centre or resort core. The redevelopment of the LQ site (the central station car park and adjoining buildings), is a prime opportunity for the development of a major tourist/ leisure attraction within the resort core and could comfortably include and accommodate some or all of the uses and floorspace currently proposed in the form of a new build development. Therefore there are sequentially preferable site(s) for this substantial tourism/ leisure attraction in Blackpool notwithstanding that sites outside the town have not been considered even though the size of the development, the existence of two ice rinks already in Blackpool and the submitted statement would suggest it is more of a regional rather than local facility.

The proposed use, located several miles outside of the town centre would largely be a destination visit in its own right, with few anticipated linked trips, as one would expect in a resort core/ town centre location, nor would it involve any significant regeneration benefits with the re-use of a large fairly featureless building located to the rear part of the former TVR site. It is also considered that the proposed use would undermine the regeneration of and investment in the resort core and town centre and would not be complementary to existing tourist attractions in the resort. The principle of locating the proposed use here is therefore also considered unacceptable and contrary to Policies RR1, BH11 and BH12 of the Local Plan, and Policies CS4 and CS21 of the Core Strategy and contrary to the NPPF (Core planning principle 2 'Ensuring the vitality of town centres')

The initial Socio Economic report considered employment, shops/ services and local government finance stating the proposal will create new jobs and assist in regeneration, shops and services are within walking distance and an explanation of the business rating. 27 construction jobs would be (have been) created and a further 15 full time and 15 part time when operational. The Addendum considered the impact on the two existing rinks. It is not considered by the agent that there will be any significant diversion of trade given the size, location and function of the Pleasure Beach Ice Arena. In relation to the Jubilee Ice Arena in Cleveleys, which it notes is outside Blackpool, 'whilst there may be some leakage of trade such an assessment is speculative' and the impact is considered minor. This assertion is not accepted and whilst there would be some jobs created from the use, equally there may well be jobs lost if the proposal forces the closure of one of the two existing rinks, the Cleveleys rink is seen to be most at risk given that the Pleasure Beach relies largely on ice shows. Putting aside the need, impact and the locational aspects of the proposal those same jobs would be created were the use to be located in or adjoining the town centre/ resort core.

Parking/ Traffic Generation/ Highway Safety- the site's location is defined as having low accessibility. The maximum car parking standard in such cases is one space per 25 sqm of floorpsace equating to 126 spaces. The proposal, as amended, would provide 91 spaces, a shortfall of 35 spaces below the maximum permitted. Whilst a shortfall may be acceptable in a highly accessible location and where a use serves a local catchment however this site is low accessibility and would serve a much wider catchment. It is considered that parking provision for the use should be at or very close to the maximum. Bristol Avenue within the vicinity of the application site has on street parking restrictions in place and the forecourt parking available for businesses occupying buildings on the site frontage is usually fairly heavily subscribed, particularly outside the two fitness gyms. The application premises are also located close to the egress from the Council household waste/ re-cycling centre which has recently been up-graded to include ancillary retailing of re-cycled items with further additions anticipated. Therefore the existing significant traffic levels associated with the waste/ re-cycling centre are expected to increase. It is expected that the proposed car parking provision will result in additional on street parking at peak times in the vicinity of the site which may well overspill into residential areas given the on street parking restrictions that are in place on Bristol Avenue.

The submitted servicing, turning area and coach parking area is also considered to be inadequate for the proposed use. Adopted parking standards require a minimum of one coach parking space with the site, although coach parking is provided this area also doubles up as the service area where refuse and delivery vehicles would access the site and turn around. This would create potential conflict and difficulties in vehicle manoeuvres and may result in vehicles for example reversing out of the site onto Bristol Avenue.

The combined shortfall in off street parking and inadequate servicing and turning facilities are likely to increase the demand for on street parking and impede the free flow of traffic and add to congestion within the vicinity of the site contrary to Policies AS1 and AS2 of the Local Plan and Policy CS5 of the Core Strategy.

<u>Impact on Residential Amenity</u>- the closest residential properties to the application site (adjacent the Ashfield Road junction) are some 40 metres to the west of the service access although the distance to the access to the main car park is 80 metres away. The use itself would be located behind a number of buildings which front Bristol Avenue. The opening hours of the proposed use are given as 10am to 10pm Monday to Fridays and 9am to 10pm on Saturdays, Sundays and Bank Holidays.

Other than the additional traffic generation from the use, including potential additional on street parking demands, it is not considered that the proposal will have a significant residential amenity impact. The additional traffic generation and on street parking demand is not by itself considered sufficient to warrant a refusal of planning permission.

In terms of impact on visual amenity the proposal involves the re-use of an existing former industrial building which appears to already have been largely converted and it is located some distance from the Bristol Avenue frontage at the rear of the site and behind two storey buildings on the site frontage and therefore there is not considered to be any significant visual impact. The car parking area will also be largely hidden from view behind those same buildings, the proposed new vehicular access into the site is further east along Bristol Avenue and hence further from the nearest houses.

Air quality and noise assessments have been submitted neither of which have highlighted any particular issues in terms of anticipated impact on residential amenity. The Head of Neighbourhood Services has assessed both reports and does not raise any objections.

In terms of the impact on visual and residential amenity it is not considered that the proposal would conflict with Policies LQ1, LQ14 or BH3 of the Blackpool Local Plan.

<u>Other issues arising from the additional application submissions</u>- There have been a number of additional reports and surveys submitted following the quashing of the planning permission. These reports relate to a number of technical and specialist topics.

In relation to contaminated land it would appear that the intended method of remediation is to cap it through the use of tarmac. This is considered to be acceptable. However it has not been stated if materials will be taken off site, and if so how this will be disposed of or whether the intention is to leave it as existing and then add another layer of tarmac. The agent's response is awaited on this matter and any comments received will be reported via the up-date note

There are no particular drainage or surface water issues raised by the application. The Environment Agency has confirmed it has no objections to the proposal subject to the imposition of a surface water drainage condition.

In relation to archaeology and cultural issues the application site does not contain (is or close to) any cultural heritage sites or features that have statutory protection. Neither does the site contain (or is close to) a listed building or conservation area. An analysis of existing information and historical mapping has identified that there are no features within the site of local, regional or national importance. Given the above it is not necessary to provide any mitigation works as part of the development in order to safeguard and cultural, archaeological or heritage assets. It has also been confirmed that there are no issues from an ecology point of view.

The building has been insulated above the standard required under the Building Regulations to maintain temperatures to enable the ice rink to function. The cost of recladding the building has been well in excess of 10 per cent of the construction costs which is the figure used on Local Plan policy LQ8 and therefore the building is considered to constitute sustainable development. The site is not at risk from flooding and is under the 1 hectare requirement for a Flood Risk Assessment and Members will note that the Environment Agency has no objections to the proposal.

<u>Conclusion</u> Whilst the application premises have been vacant for a number of years the overriding matters in this case are considered to be shortage of available employment land in Blackpool demonstrated recently with the employment land allocation of 14 hectares by Fylde Borough to meet Blackpool's future needs and confirmed as part of the Blackpool's Employment Land Study dated June 2014. There was also the real possibility of sub-dividing the premises making it more lettable for business/ industry, the availability of at least one other sequentially preferable site (within Blackpool) within a much more sustainable location, which would significantly assist in the resort regeneration, and the shortage of off street car parking facilities for the proposal and inadequate servicing and turning facilities within the application site. Sequentially the submission is questionable given the size of the facility and the agent's limitation of the area of search firstly within a 10 mile radius of the site and later confined to Blackpool. There are only two comparable sized facilities in the North West at Blackburn and Altrincham, which are both regional facilities.

Whilst the application has previously been granted by the Council's Planning Committee the officer recommendation to Committee continues to be one of refusal for the reasons previously given and now endorsed by the change in circumstances since February 2013. The approval of the application would detract from the resort core in providing a substantial leisure/ tourist and regional facility out of centre which would have a substantial catchment area and be capable of attracting large numbers of visitors to the town becoming a single destination in its own right. It would not have any significant regeneration benefits and whilst there are employment opportunities offered these would better be served in a more appropriate and sustainable location for this substantial tourist/ leisure attraction. It would also make the continued resistance to the loss of other designated employment land, e.g.: the refused housing site on the adjoining land, much more difficult.

Notwithstanding the additional information submitted with the application the fundamental issues in respect of the designation of the site for industrial/ business use and the location of such a large leisure facility outside the town centre, resort core or any other recognised centre remain. The Judicial Review highlighted a number of matters which led to the quashing of the planning permission and a number of additional and up-dated reports have been submitted. These reports confirm the Council's original position namely that the development does not require an Environment Statement **and a revised screening opinion has been undertaken.** A number of the technical reports are considered to satisfy topics of noise, air quality and ecology matters, for example, although for reasons outlined above a number of the sequential test, the socio economic impact and the marketing of the then vacant industrial premises.

The portfolio of available industrial premises has been up-dated and re-submitted and assessed by Council officers and interested third parties, namely Walsingham Planning, who have made detailed comments on this and many other matters which are reported above. The application does not accord with the Blackpool Local Plan or the Core Strategy, which is the most recent expression of planning policy and is also contrary to national policy in the form of the NPPF particularly it does not constitute sustainable development, it is contrary to Core principle 'Ensuring the vitality of town centres' and 'Promoting sustainable transport' and fails to satisfactorily meet the sequential test (paragraph 27) and whilst the proposal could meet core principle 'Promoting healthy communities' this is not the overriding factor here given the existing provision in the area and the location of the proposed development. Finally notwithstanding the length of time the units were said be vacant it is not considered that the sub-division option was fully explored and there is a clear indication from the

landowner of a desire to pursue other development options for the site as evidenced by the housing application on adjoining land.

LEGAL AGREEMENT AND/OR DEVELOPER FINANCIAL CONTRIBUTION

None

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

Under Article eight and Article one of the first protocol to the Convention on Human Rights, a person is entitled to the right to respect for private and family life, and the peaceful enjoyment of his/her property. However, these rights are qualified in that they must be set against the general interest and the protection of the rights and freedoms of others. There are no specific human rights issues raised by this application.

CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

The contents of this report have been considered in the context of the Council's general duty, in all its functions, to have regard to community safety issues as required by section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

High Court Judgement dated 12 December 2013 (Appendix 5a) and letter from Walsingham Planning dated 15 August 2014 (Appendix 5b).

Recommended Decision: Refuse

Conditions and Reasons

- 1. The proposed development introduces an inappropriate use(s) into an area allocated for industrial and related business uses where sites/premises offering appropriate employment opportunities are to be maintained. Furthermore, the applicant has failed to sufficiently demonstrate the need for the proposed use to justify overriding this policy. Approval of this development would set an unwelcome precedent and make it difficult for the Council to resist future applications for similar proposals on industrial and business land/premises elsewhere in the Borough. For these reasons the proposed development is contrary to Policy DE1 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and Policies CS1 and CS3 of the Blackpool Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy Proposed Submission.
- 2. The proposed development introduces a significant tourism/ leisure attraction outside the resort core and town centre where there are considered to be sequentially more preferable site(s) for such development and hence if approved the proposal would undermine the Council's regeneration objectives for the resort and set an unwelcome precedent making it difficult for the Council to resist future applications for other out of town centre/ resort core tourism/ leisure proposals elsewhere in the Borough. For these reasons the proposed development is contrary to Policies RR1, BH11 and BH12 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016, the National Planning Policy Framework (Core planning principle 2 'Ensuring the vitality of town centres') and Policies CS4, CS20 and CS21 of the Blackpool Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy - Proposed Submission.

- 3. The proposed development does not make adequate provision for off street car parking, servicing and manoeuvring facilities within the application site which would result in additional on street parking, congestion and impede the free flow of traffic within the vicinity of the application site. As such the proposed development is contrary to Policies AS1 and AS2 of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and Policy CS5 of the Blackpool Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy Proposed Submission.
- 4. The applicant has failed to satisfy the sequential test in terms of demonstrating that the application site is the most appropriate location for the development, in terms of considering an appropriate catchment area for the sequential test and in terms of the impact on existing facilities within the catchment area of the proposal. As such the proposed development is contrary to Paragraphs 26 and 27 and of the National Planning Policy Framework

5. **ARTICLE 31 STATEMENT (NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK para 187)**

The Local Planning Authority has sought to secure a sustainable development that would improve the economic, social and environmental conditions of Blackpool but in this case there are considered factors - conflict with the National Planning Policy Framework, policies of the Blackpool Local Plan 2001-2016 and policies of the Blackpool Local Plan Part 1: Core Strategy - Proposed Submission. - which justify refusal

Advice Notes to Developer Not applicable This page is intentionally left blank



In the High Court of Justice co/7185/2012 Queen's Bench Division Administrative Court sitting in Manchester

In the matter of an application for Judicial Review

The Queen on the application of

PROPERTY ALLIANCE GROUP LIMITED

versus

BLACKPOOL BOROUGH COUNCIL

Application for permission to apply for Judicial Review NOTIFICATION of the Judge's decision (CPR Part 54.11, 54.12)

Following consideration of the documents lodged by the Claimant and the Acknowledgement of service filed by the Defendant

Order by His Honour Judge Waksman QC sitting as a High Court Judge

Permission is hereby granted in respect of all grounds except 5.

Observations:

- 1. It is at least arguable that the C & A report had a significant effect on members' consideration of the important issue of employment land yet its very late arrival prevented proper consideration by the case officer or the Claimant. Ground 2 is also arguable given the prima facie confusion as to what the Council was saying about the policies with which it did not say that the development conflicted. On Ground 3 while the NPPF is guidance only there is force in the point that there was not a proper appreciation of the strength of that guidance, where paragraph 27 was engaged. On Ground 4, it is arguable that simply to proceed on the basis of a long vacancy as a countervailing factor to loss of employment land makes no sense absent evidence about what (if anything) had been done to stop it being vacant.
- 2. I do not accept there is anything in Ground 5. There was evidence from some of the supporters about the advantage with linkage or proximity with other leisure facilities. The Council was entitled to form a view about this. If the Claimant wishes to renew orally his application for permission in this regard such application should be made on a rolled-up basis at the start of the substantive hearing.
- 3. I agree that Ground 6 is arguable. The screening opinion was backdated and as it appears to have been done after the event though before permission was granted, it is hard to discern what evidence had been provided which could have enabled the case officer to come to an informed view of the likely environmental impact in terms of the required factors.
- 4. It is not possible to say at this stage that none of the above matters because the Defendant would clearly have reached the same decision anyway especially given that the case officer recommended refusal.

D. Watsman

Signed:

Date: 09 August 2013

Where permission to apply has been granted, claimants and their legal advisers are reminded of their obligation to reconsider the merits of their application in the light of the defendant's evidence.

Sent / Handed to the claimant, defendant and any interested party / the claimant's, defendant's, and any interested party's solicitors on (date):

Solicitors:

Ref No.

Note to Defendants and Interested Parties

(1) Where permission has been granted, a defendant and any other person served with the claim form who wishes to contest the claim or support it on additional grounds must file and serve –

(a) detailed grounds for contesting the claim or supporting it on additional grounds; and

(b) any written evidence,

within 35 days after service of the order giving permission.



WALSINGHAM PLANNING

SPECIALIST PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT CONSULTANTS Brandon House, King Street, Knutsford, Cheshire, WA16 6DX T 01565 757500 F 01565 757501 E knutsford@walsingplan.co.uk www.walsinghamplanning.co.uk

Our Ref: VH/KN0003/13

15 August 2014

Mr M Shaw Blackpool Council Customer First Centre Municipal Building Corporation Street Blackpool FY1 1NF

BLACKPOOL COUNCIL MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS # UST NORTH Rech 1 8 AUG 2014 Allocalin Location lanno

Dear Mr Shaw

Application for Ice Skating Centre at Former TVR Buildings, Bristol Road, Bispham Application Reference: 12/0485

I write to you with regard to the above application and following our conversation on 8 August 2014.

We discussed at this time that I had been in conversation with management at the Jubilee Ice Rink who confirmed that the opening of the Fylde Coast Ice Arena, in advance of receiving planning permission, was already having an adverse impact on their business. The details of these operational effects have now been conveyed to me via e mail, the contents of which I enclose below;

"Dear Vicky

The ice rink employs one full time manager, two full time duty managers and 14 part time staff, the turnover for the ice rink last week was £3014, this turnover in the last few weeks has declined, this is due to the rumours that the new ice rink was about to open. As you know, an ice rink has a lot of birthday parties for children, these have declined sharply, again, due to the rumours that the new ice rink is bigger and better and the ice rink is full size. More importantly, it is cheaper than our ice rink.

With the continuation of the decline in business, costs must be saved in every shape and form, starting from staffing levels. For the ice rink to survive, the turnover must be around £8k per week, the profit is not what we are chasing, just survival.

At present, with the current turnover, bearing in mind that it is the school holidays and we should be busy the ice rink is not feasible, it does not cover the staff wages, let alone the overheads and this can only continue for a limited period of time. The ice hockey team has now moved, some of the private coaching have also moved, public footfall such as birthday parties etc are also moving, Blackpool as a town including our area has already got two ice rinks, one at the pleasure beach and the other, us. For the third one to open up so close to us will result in one closing, especially with the cheap prices that the new ice rink is charging. In simple terms, the

Also at: Bourne House, Cores End Road, Bourne End, Bucks SL8 5AR T 01628 532244 F 01628 532255 E bourne.end@walsingplan.comage 49

Directors: Stephen Brooker Dip. T&CP. MRTPI. Mark Krassowski MRICS. Crowdcrete Ltd., Bourne House, Cores End Road, Bourne End, Bucks SL8 5AR Company Reg. No. 1840469 VAT No. 413304013 new ice rink will do whatever is possible in order for us to close or indeed, if we survive, they have to close. Their price policy does not add up to any business sense.

Please let me know if you require any further information

Regards

Mehdi Afshar CEO MFA (GB) Ltd

In summary the effects being felt by Jubilee Ice rink are very real and have been immediate; the business has seen a sharp decline in both bookings and takings since the opening of the Fylde Ice Coast Arena.

The Addendum to the Socio Economic Statement prepared by Cassidy and Ashton and submitted to you in June 2014 makes direct reference to the Jubilee Ice rink and concludes that the impact of the opening of the Fylde Coast Ice Arena will be '*minor and not significant enough to warrant further analysis*' The above evidence makes it clear that the effects on the Jubilee Ice rink are far from minor and are in fact, even at this early stage, significant.

It remains the position of PAG that the planning application on the former TVR site should be refused for the reasons set out in our letters dated 4 and 31 January 2013 and 23 May and 18 July 2014. The proposals are contrary to planning policy at all levels and the absence of any material planning considerations to sufficiently outweigh the harm caused means that the application should be refused.

Yours sincerely

Vicky Harper Msc Assistant Planner Blackpool Council

Planning Committee:

8th Sept 2014

Planning Application Reports – Update Notes

Listed below are changes to the planning reports made as a result of additional information received since the publication of the agenda for this meeting.

Case:		Address:	Update:
Year:		Address.	Opuale.
Year: 12	0485	Former TVR buildings, Bristol Avenue	A further 114 letters of support have been received to the proposal together with a further 10 letters of objection. A number of the letters reflect and refer to the fact that the ice rink is now open The Head of Transportation- comments on the amended scheme that 3150sqms of floorspace would require 126 parking spaces at a ratio of one space per 25 sqm. No reduction has been applied as the site scores a low accessibility score giving a shortfall of 35 spaces. On this basis and for reasons previously set out I am not willing to support the proposal Sustainability Manager- has commented in relation to the Energy and Environmental Report that the design appears to meet and exceed the necessary standards and guidelines including those set out in the Core Strategy. Applicant/ Agent – in response to the comment that pre-commencement conditions cannot be complied with "we would ask that the application be determined on its merits and appropriate conditions applied as are necessary. It will be for the applicant to demonstrate how these have been,
			or will be able to be met.

File name: \$iyqzlw2h.doc Updated:

Blackpool Council

	Regarding the comments from the Environmental Protection Officer, this seems sensible and capping of the existing material on site should be conditioned subject to the comments of the Environment Agency."
	Further comments- the plant area to the east of the building is not a new addition, it has merely moved from the west side of the building. The noise impact is obviously reduced by this relocation of the plant as it lies between the Manx Gen transformer and the ice arena building. The sound pressure data from the manufacturer is as follows: 63 dBA (EN 13487, @ 10m)